ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 20, 2003
8:02 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 64
"An Act relating to court approval of the purchase of structured
settlements.”

- MOVED CSHB 64( STA) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 18
"An Act relating to the liability of parents and | egal guardi ans
of m nors who destroy property.™

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 46
"An Act relating to ballots."

- MOVED CSHB 46( STA) OUT OF COWMM TTEE
PREVI OUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 64

SHORT TI TLE: PURCHASE OF STRUCTURED SETTLEMENTS
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) FOSTER

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action
01/ 27/ 03 0075 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 20, 2003



01/ 27/ 03 0075 (H STA, JUD
01/ 27/ 03 0075 (H REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS
02/ 11/ 03 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
02/ 11/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)
02/ 20/ 03 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
BILL: HB 18

SHORT TI TLE: PARENTAL LI ABI LI TY FOR CHI LD S DAVAGE
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) MEYER

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/21/03 0036 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 0036 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/21/03 0036 (H STA, JUD

01/ 21/ 03 0036 (H REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS

02/ 07/ 03 0153 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  ANDERSON

02/ 20/ 03 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 46

SHORT TI TLE: PRI MARY ELECTI ON BALLOTS
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) HAWKER

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/21/03 0043 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 0043 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/21/03 0043 (H STA

01/ 21/ 03 0043 (H REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS

02/ 20/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

AL TAMAGNI, Broker

Structured Financi al Associ at es;

Menmber, National Structured Trade Associ ation
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 64.

PAUL LaBOLLE, Staff

to Representative R chard Foster
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 20, 2003



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Informed the conmttee of two possible
anendnents to HB 64.

JERRY LUCKHAUPT, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Counsel

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during discussion of HB
64.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 18.

LAURA GLAI SER, Director

Di vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 18.

VI CKI  HORODYSK

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 18, expressed her
concern that, if this legislation were adopted, famlies my
reconsi der their decisions to beconme guardians to or adopt high-
risk children, because of the financial risk that would be
i nvol ved.

CARL ROSE, Executive Director

Associ ation of Al aska School Boards (AASB)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testifying on behalf of AASB, told the
commttee that that association would like to see the cap
renoved, during the hearing on HB 18.

SEAN HALLORAN
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 46.

JENNI FER RUDI NGER, Executive Director

Al aska G vil Liberties Union

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of that organization in
support of the proposed conmttee substitute for HB 46.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 20, 2003



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-11, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Dahlstrom Lynn, Berkowtz, and Wyhrauch were present
at the call to order. Representative G uenberg arrived as the
meeting was i n progress.

HB 64- PURCHASE OF STRUCTURED SETTLEMENTS

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 64, "An Act relating to court approval of the
purchase of structured settlenents.”

Number 0150

AL TAMAGNI, Broker, Structured Financial Associates; Menber,
National Structured Settlements Trade Association, testified his
support in HB 64. He noted that this |egislation has passed in
various fornms in 33 other states. This legislation is necessary
in Alaska primarily for the protection of injured people to whom
the [structured] paynents are nade. Basically, this is a
consuner protection bill. He explained that there have been
peopl e who are to receive future periodic paynents from workers'
conpensati on cases, personal injury cases, and wongful death
cases. Those people have been approached to sell those
annuities for a lunp of cash at a substantial discount and with
the loss of future tax-free benefits. Many of those who have
sold the aforenentioned annuities have returned to the welfare
rolls and general Medicare relief and the IliKke. M. Tamagni
reiterated that this |legislation should be passed and since it's
consuner protection legislation, there should be no partisan
politics.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWTZ inquired as to the follow ng: t he
nunber people who are approached to have a structured settl enment
in the state; the nunber of people who have structured
settlenments; and the inpact of this |egislation.

MR, TAMAGNI inforned the conmttee that no statistics are kept
by the trial bar or the insurance conpanies. He pointed out
that these are private settlements that aren't all a matter of
public record.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 20, 2003



REPRESENTATIVE BERKONTZ inquired as to the nunber of
settlenments in Al aska annually. He further inquired as to the
percentage of settlenents that lead to structured settl enents.

MR. TAMAGNI answered that the nunber of settlenments in the state
could be obtained from the court system Wth regard to the
nunber of cases settled by a structured settlenment, M. Tamagni
reiterated that no statistics are available. In further
response to Representative Berkowitz, M. Tanagni said that he
didn't believe there are any accurate statistics available from
ot her st ates.

Number 0483

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 1, Section 1,
paragraph (1) which specifies [that this legislation] only
applies to court filed and approved structured settlenents.
Therefore, he surmsed that this legislation doesn't speak to
private structured settl enents.

MR. TAMAGNI explained that there are many instances in which
cases have been settled when no lawsuit has been filed. Thi s
| egi sl ation addresses those people who want to sell their
benefits and requires that those people go through a court
approval for that process.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON returned attention to page 1, Section 1,
paragraph (1) and recalled that the [|anguage "action filed"
nmeant a court action. He asked if that is M. Tanmagni's
under st andi ng.

MR. TAMAGNI related his understanding that an action is one in
which a lawsuit is filed in the appropriate state. However,
there are cases for which no lawsuit is filed because the
parties reach agreenent prior to filing the lawsuit. Therefore,
no action is involved because nothing was ever filed with the
court.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that Representative G uenberg
has pointed out the section with "or could ve been filed"
| anguage and t hus woul d i ncl ude [private structured
settlenments].

Number 0773
MR. TAMAGNI, in response to Representative Berkow tz, confirned
that he does business in structured settlenents. In further

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 20, 2003



response, M. Tamagni clarified that he is approached by either
a plaintiff attorney or the defense counsel. In nost cases, the
plaintiff attorney wll <call and inform M. Tanmagni of a
severely injured individual for which there is concern of a
proliferation of a lunp cash and thus there is the desire to do
a structured annuity to preserve the future benefits on a tax

exenpt basis. Therefore, a package annuity is prepared and
placed with the concurrence of the defense and then the injured
party receives the tax-free benefits. In response to

Representative Berkowtz's question regarding the nunber of
annuities placed annually, M. Tanmagni related his personal

experience of handling 25-40 cases per year. He noted that
there is one other person in Anchorage in the sane firm who
perfornms the sanme service. The mjority of structured
settlenments are handled by out-of-state brokers. In response to

Representative Berkowitz, M. Tamagni said he had no idea of the
portion of cases he handles because there is no statistical
information with regard to the nunber of structured settlenents
that are placed per year per state. However, he estinated that
[ he and the other person] handl e maybe 5-10 percent of the total
cases in the state that are settled with a structured annuity.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ surm sed then that it would be fair to
say that there are approximately 1,000 cases annually.

MR. TAMAGNI agreed and noted that would include autonobile
acci dents.

Number 0950

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG hi ghli ghted that there already exists a
simlar provision, AS 09.17.040, which addresses periodic
paynent s. He asked if M. Tamagni was famliar wth that
provision, which is found in the Tort Reform chapter.

MR TAMAGNI clarified that these structured annuities are
periodi ¢ paynents. The periodic paynents are received from a
structured annuity.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that the current statute

AS 09.17.040(f), includes the follow ng sentence: "Paynents may
be nodified only in the event of the death of the judgnent
creditor, in which case paynents may not be reduced or

term nated, but shall be paid to persons to whom the judgnent
creditor owed a duty of support, as provided by law, imediately
before death.™ Representative Guenberg interpreted that to
nmean that the court has no jurisdiction to allow a lunp sum

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 20, 2003



paynment under the aforenentioned statute. He asked if M.
Tamagni knew of a case which would support nodifying the
af orenenti oned statute such that it allowed the court to
entertain a notion for a lunp sum paynent as is being done in HB
64.

MR. TAMAGNI said he didn't believe the conmttee wanted to
confuse structured annuity paynents and periodic paynents
because they are synonynous under Section 104 A2 of the Internal
Revenue Service (I RS) code. M. Tamagni surmsed that HB 64 is
attenpting to lay out the terns, conditions, and protection that
should be guaranteed for those paynents to be converted to a
partial lunp sum M. Tamagni indicated [that HB 64] is simlar
to the scenario in which the |legislature took action to curb the
selling of permanent fund dividends (PFD). Therefore, M.
Tamagni related his belief that HB 64 attenpts to neet the sane
standard and principle wthout nodifying any section of the
civil code beyond that specified.

Number 1230
PAUL LaBOLLE, Staff to Representative Richard Foster, Al aska

State Legislature, informed the commttee that the sponsor has
sonme anmendnents that he would like incorporated into a conmttee

substitute (CS). One of the anendnents is the result of the
Al aska courts' desire for the follow ng: page 3, [line 20],
after "maintained" insert "or the payee is domciled in".

Clarification that the language to be inserted would read "or
where the payee is domciled" was given. M. LaBolle nmentioned
another issue regarding whether the jurisdiction would be
limted to superior court and announced that [the sponsor] has
no stance wth regard to whether that should be changed or not.

Nunber 1403

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG noved that the conmttee adopt
Amendnent 1, which read as foll ows:

page 3, line 20, after "mmintained",
I nsert "or where the payee is domciled"

There being no objection, Arendnent 1 was adopt ed.
REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG informed the conmittee that he
di scussed the potential anendnent dealing with court system

jurisdiction with a representative from the court system
Representative Guenberg related his belief that nost of these

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 20, 2003



structured settlenments would involved damages that would, at
|l east, initially be above the jurisdictional Ilimt of the
district court, $50, 000. Furthernore, in sonme of the cases, by
the time the payee wanted to cash out, the remaining paynents
would total |ess than $50, 000. Mor eover, sone of these cases
woul d' ve never been filed in court and have an out-of-court
settlenment, which is an enforceable contract. Ther ef or e,
Representative G uenberg reconmmended the follow ng: page 3,
line 19, delete "superior court", insert "court of conpetent
jurisdiction".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that this anmendnent would
allow either [the superior court or the district court] to have
the notion filed in the appropriate court. He said that he
believes the court system feels that the district court would
[ be] conpetent in this area, although there had been nention as
to whether this would be nore of a probate mtter.
Representative Guenberg said, "My feeling is it doesn't have to
be, it's not just a conpetency kind of thing, [rather] it's an
approval of a settlenent.” Furthernore, there are mnor
settlenents that can be filed in the district or superior court.

Number 1630

JERRY L UCKHAUPT, At t or ney, Legi sl ative Legal Counsel
Legislative Legal and Research Services, Legislative Affairs
Agency, said that he viewed [structured settlenents] as akin to
guar di anshi p/ conservatorship proceedi ngs, which are solely
within the jurisdiction of the superior court. M. Luckhaupt
pointed out that the court has to nmake a finding that's in the
best interest of the payee and the payee's dependents to allow
this transfer to occur. He noted that the settlenents he has
seen have been fairly large settlenents and thus it seenmed nore
appropriate to be [under the jurisdiction] of the superior
court. M. Luckhaupt expressed concern with the |anguage "court
of conpetent jurisdiction" because he wasn't sure that one woul d
want a justice court making this decision if assets are spent
down to a certain level. Therefore, M. Luckhaupt suggested the
fol |l ow ng | anguage: "superi or or district court as
appropriate”.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cl arified that he wasn't thinking of a
magi strate. Representative G uenberg asked if mnor settlenents
can go to the district court.

MR.  LUCKHAUPT answered that mnor settlenents can go to the
district court, although he didn't believe it to be a common

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 20, 2003



pr ocess. M. Luckhaupt said, "I think there could be a
difference of opinion as to the issue involved here as opposed
to those normal mnor settlenments ... that don't necessarily
have soneone on the other side objecting to the transfer.” He
explained that this was presented to him as sonetinmes being an
adversarial process and the mnor settlenments wth which he is
famliar aren't adversarial.

Nunmber 1830

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG inquired as to who would be objecting
unless a conservator was appoi nted. If a conservator was
appointed, then there would be a conservatorship and [the case]
woul dn't be in the district court.

MR. LUCKHAUPT clarified that he was given exanples in which the

payor objected to these transfers at tines. For exanple, a
friend of the children would be involved, which woul d
necessitate a guardian ad litem appointnment and would al nost

have to go to superior court because there is a dispute.
Therefore, it seened to be an econony of resources to have the
case in superior court, he explained. However, he noted that he
didn't have any strong feeling on it, although nobst states
placed this in their trial court of general jurisdiction.

MR. TAMAGNI interjected that there probably won't be a buyer for

any case under $100, 000. Furthernore, there is rarely a case
with a future present value of |ess than $50,000. Therefore, he
estimated that 99.99 percent of the cases will be set at the
superior court |evel. M. Tamagni viewed the superior court as
the final stop where everything can be done because it reduces
the cost of the representatives of each party. M. Tamagni

related his belief that there is a question of conpetency at
sone of the lower court levels and thus he encouraged the
committee to maintain the superior court's [jurisdiction] as the
initial and final jurisdiction.

Nunmber 2046

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ identified the cost to the payee as a
concern for the consunmer protection. He inquired as to the
anount brokers are conpensat ed.

MR. TAMAGNI infornmed the committee that brokers aren't engaged
in this portion of the process in any way. In fact, i1if he
receives calls from people wanting to sell their annuities, he
tries to discourage them M. Tamagni clarified that he doesn't

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 20, 2003



provide his services at all when soneone wants to sell their
annuities. M. Tamagni explained that when people settle a
| awsuit they use a structured annuity, periodic paynent under
Section 104 A2, and then he becones involved and nakes a

conmmi ssi on. Once people receive those paynents and the desire
is to sell the annuities to whonmever, he isn't involved in that
pr ocess. Those involved in the sale of the annuities are in

separate businesses, all of which are virtually out of state.
Number 2186

MR. LaBOLLE turned to another issue, which he thought would
[ address] sonme of Representative Berkowitz's [concerns]. M.
LaBolle informed the commttee that the National Association of
Settlement Purchasers specified that the cost of bringing a
structured settlenment in for transfer is roughly $1,800-3%2, 500.
The National Association of Settlement Purchasers also related
to him that it take 60-90 days [to bring a structured
settlenment], although the association nmentioned it mght be a
shorter tine period in Al aska due to the volune of cases.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ hi ghlighted that those putting together
these structured settlenents receive a flat fee ranging between
$1, 800- $2, 400.

MR. LaBOLLE responded that he wasn't exactly sure, but he
understood it to be the total cost to the payee, dependent upon
| egal fees.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said that he was trying to determ ne
where the noney goes. He pointed out that part of HB 64
requires a payee to go to a professional and thus there is a
cost for that. Furthernore, there is a cost for putting one of
these [structured settlenents] t oget her. Representati ve
Berkowtz said that although he agreed with the objectives [of
HB 64], he wanted to understand who is receiving transactional
f ees.

MR, LaBOLLE specified that the $1,800-%$2,500 doesn't include
professional advice but rather is only the cost once the
transferee firmactually supplies the material to the court.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH announced his preference not to address the
superior court [anmendnent].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG not ed hi s agreenent.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 20, 2003



Nunber 2370

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report HB 64, as amended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 64(STA) was
reported fromthe House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

The conmittee took an at-ease from8:37 a.m to 9:41 a.m

HB 18- PARENTAL LIABILITY FOR CH LD S DAVAGE

Nunber 2410

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 18, "An Act relating to the liability of parents
and | egal guardians of m nors who destroy property.”

Nunber 2430

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 18, told the conmttee that the proposed |egislation would
renmove the cap of up to $10,000 for intentional damages caused
by a child to corporations, schools, villages, churches, and
charitabl e organizations. He said, "$10,000 just isn't very
much. It's not uncommon for a child to be able to go out on a
weekend and cause up to $100,000 in danage to school property."
He stated that the noney [that schools spend to repair damages]
should go into the classroom to buy conputers and to reduce
cl assroom si ze, for exanple. He noted that the Anchorage School
District suffered alnpbst $750,000 in damages |ast year. It is
an ongoi ng and increasing problem he said.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated that at one tinme the cap was set at
$2, 000. In 1995 the cap was raised to $10, 000. He pointed out
to Chair Weyhrauch that the anmobunt to which [HB 18] would raise
the cap has been "left open.” He referred to information
[included in the conmttee packet] that |I|ists the wvarying
anounts of caps in other states in the nation.

Nunber 2532

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated his belief that renoving the cap
will have the followng effects: to give school districts nore
noney for teaching; to make parents nore aware of what their
kids are doing, where they are doing it, and who they are doing
it with; and to inpress upon children that they wll pay for
foolish acts. For exanple, Representative Meyer stated that if

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 20, 2003



his own daughter ever [was involved in vandalisni he would
[wi thhol d] her permanent dividend for a few years and nake her
go to work and reinburse him

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER urged the comittee to pass HB 18 and
offered to answer questions. He noted that [the issue] is a
priority for the Anchorage School District, therefore they wll
be able to testify nuch better than hinself.

Nunmber 1590

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stated that it is a fundanental policy
di scussi on taking place regarding whether to have a cap at all.

Nunmber 2668

CAROL COVEAU, Superintendent, Anchorage School District, on
behalf of the school board and the conmmunity, expressed
appreciation to Representative Myer for sponsoring HB 18. She
remnded the commttee that [the Anchorage School District]
suffered a lot of vandalism |ast year, which peaked the need to
elimnate the cap on vandalism caused by juveniles. She said
that the district is now finding that the courts are reluctant
to assess danmges, even to [$10,000] level if the juvenile does
not have the ability to pay, "or their parents do not have an
ability to pay past the age of nineteen.™

M5. COVEAU said there is concern about the nessage being sent to
young people when there are very few consequences for vandalism
She said she thinks that nost people in the community share
Representative Meyer's aforenentioned coments. " St udents
should have an obligation and it may extend into their adult
life that they have to repay damages for vandalism to public
property," she said.

M5. COVEAU nentioned other acts of vandalism at D nond High
School and Chugi ak El enmentary School. She urged elimnating any
cap, thereby allowing the courts to inpose judgnents based upon
the situation, the damage caused, and the attitudes of the
students and parents toward working off the damges and
restitution.

Nunber 2804

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 1, line 14, to page 2,
line 15, and read, "without regard to |l egal custody but with due

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 20, 2003



consideration for the actual care and custody...". He asked
Representative Meyer to clarify that.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said he would defer the question to his
staff.

Nunmber 2845
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered the foll owi ng expl anati on:

Generally, if the parents are divorced and custody is

awarded, there are two types of custody. There's
| egal custody and physical custody. Legal custody is
a decision as to who wll neke decisions for the
child, general l vy, deci si ons i nvol vi ng heal t h,

education, religious upbringing, that sort of thing.
And the physical custody is where the kid lives and

with whom the child spends their tine. And it's
usually sone form of a divided physical custody. So,
what this neans is that, in determining who is
responsible anong the parents - apportioning the
damages between the parents up to the limt at the
present time - the court shall do it, regardless of

who has l|egal custody, in the sense [of] who can nake
the decisions for education and this sort of a thing.
But, the court shall consider where the child is
living and the anount of control particularly the
absent parent has.

Let's give an exanple. Let's say that the parents are
di vorced, and one of the parents noves to another part
of the state, or even to a different state, ... and
they have joint |egal custody. The parent that
actually has the child may be the only parent that has
any practi cal control over the child when the
vandal i sm occurs, and the court would then take that
into consideration in determ ning who was responsible
bet ween the parents for the damages.

Number 2929
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, for exanple, if a father does not

have physical custody during the time that a child commts
vandalism is that father "off the hook"?

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 20, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that [the |anguage in the
proposed legislation] would give the judge the discretion to
consider that factor; it's not an absolute rule.

Number 2989
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked about [unenmanci pated m nors]j.

TAPE 03-11, SIDE B
Number 2990

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM offered the follow ng exanple: A child runs
away from hone, gets into a program such as the Fam |y Focus
program in Fairbanks, Al aska, where "the troopers say that you
cannot have any control over your child in that program you
have no contact with that program®”™ At that point in time, the
child commts an act of vandalism he proposed. He asked how
t he | anguage of the proposed | egislation wuld address that.

Nunber 2946

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER replied that it is his understanding that
[the parent of that child] would not be responsible for that
child's actions, if the parent had turned over the child to the
state's custody, or the state took custody of the child.

Number 2925

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in confirmation of Representative
Meyer's reply, referred to a portion of AS 34.50.020, subsection
(b), which reads as follows [original punctuation provided]:

(b) A state agency or its agents, including a
person working in or responsible for the operation of
a foster, receiving, or detention hone, or children's
institution, i's not liable for the acts of
unemanci pated mnors in its charge or custody. A
state agency or an agent of a state agency, including
a nonprofit corporation that designates shelters for
runaways under AS 47.10.392 - 47.10.399 and enpl oyees
of or volunteers with that corporation, is not l|iable
for the acts of a mnor sheltered in a shelter for
runaways, as defined in AS 47.10. 399.

Number 2850

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 20, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, notw thstanding the aforenentioned statute,
asked why the state would not be responsible, if it has clained
it can better care for a child. He stated that it did not make
sense, because the state is then acting [in |oco parentis].

Nunber 2837

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that that was a decision that a
previous |egislature made, and if the current |egislature would
like to revisit the issue, it could consider a "partial
appel late. ™

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH noted that that addresses only the cap, not the
liability of the state in [subsection] (b), which is another
fundanmental policy issue that would have to be taken up by the

commttee in a separate bill or as an anmendnent to HB 18.
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN interjected, " want to make that
observation."

Nunber 2811

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER concurred that the purpose of the bill is
solely to change the cap. He said that there are other
conplications involved that, perhaps, should be |ooked at. He
noted that Representative Lynn has a bill simlar to HB 18 and,
after speaking to Representative Meyer, agreed jointly that HB
18 woul d be "the vehicle on the house side.” Senator Fred Dyson
also has a simlar bill, which will be [heard by the Senate.]
Number 2783

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH referred to a page included in the commttee
packet, and noted that Florida allows what he said |ooks like a
case-by-case review of danage clains, wth sonme absolution of
parents or guardi ans, depending on the circunstances. He said,
"We all know about the child, even wth good parents, who cannot
be controlled at all." He said it appeared that Florida m ght
allow an exception to naking the parent responsible for that
child s danmages and, instead, "set it on the child where it
bel ongs - a tougher |ove approach.”

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said that "we" are open to suggestions to
i nprove the existing | aw.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- February 20, 2003



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH st ated that another concern is that a cap may be
necessary in order to protect a destitute famly from being
bankrupted by the actions of a child.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER, in response to a query by Chair Wyhrauch,
reiterated that the cap of $10,000 was set in 1995. He said
that he thinks sone states may have "an automatic inflation
kicker” that allows the cap to be raised periodically to match
i nflation. He suggested that that plan mght help the
| egislature to avoid having to address this issue every five
years.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH referred to the article included in the
commttee packet about the two teenagers who ran anuck on a
tractor through a school. He said, "It's the worst-case
scenario you're playing to in this kind of thing."

Nunber 2750

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ referred to existing statutory | anguage
[ AS 34.50.020(a)], which says in part [beginning at page 1, line
12, of the bill]:

However, for purposes of this subsection, recovery in
damages shall be apportioned by the court between the
parents or between the parents and |egal guardian, or
both, w thout regard to legal custody but wth due
consideration for the actual care and custody of the
m nor provided by the parents or |egal guardi an.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said that there is no nention of
accountability or responsibility "for the juvenile." He asked
if the juvenile is excluded fromresponsibility.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated that it is his understanding that it
is up to the courts and sonetines [the courts] do hold the
juvenil es responsi bl e.

Nunmber 2645
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "No, the juvenile is responsible.
This is only in addition to the juvenile. That doesn't permt

doubl e recovery.™

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked where in statute that is witten.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 20, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that he did not have the
title of the statute, but that it deals with "people other than

the juvenile.” He said, "The juvenile is [as] responsible as
any other tort-feasor. This allows responsibility to be
assessed against a third party - the parent. That's the whole

purpose of the statute.”
Number 2583
VI CKI HORODYSKI testified as foll ows:

At first glance, this bill looks like a bill which
will force parents to provide adequate supervision and
gui dance for their children. However, there's another
side to this issue, which does not imrediately cone to
m nd. Wiy would any famly or couple willingly risk
their financial security by taking a child or sibling
group [who nmay be involved in] high-risk juvenile
del i nquency, including property danage.

Many famlies do accept such children into their hones
t hrough guardi anship and adoption. These famlies
work diligently towards helping their children grow
into the nost successful, responsible adults that they
can be. That journey is not necessarily snooth.

I'"'m a foster and adoptive parent who takes only
children with fetal alcohol spectrum disorders. I
volunteer as a coordinator of our local FAS [fetal
al cohol syndrone] parent support group, and, as a
surrogate parent, | am an educational advocate for
children in state custody. I'm also a parent
navigator wth the Fairbanks FAS diagnostic team
This puts nme in contact wth mny children and
famlies who are facing a variety of situations.

In particular, | am working with an adol escent who is
bei ng considered for adoption by a very know edgeabl e,
conpetent famly who wants to add one nore child to
their famly of seven, of which three have fetal
al cohol syndrone.

My fear is that this famly my reconsider their
decision to add one nore high-risk child to their
famly. As an adolescent, it's a mracle that a
famly is even considering adopting him If they

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 20, 2003



change their mnds because of financial risk to their
famly, there will be no other opportunity for him

Nunber 2471

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked Ms. Horodyski if people who take in an FAS
child or serve as foster parents have a contractual arrangenent
with the agency through which they get the child to allow them
"indemmi fication for damages."

M5. HORODYSKI answered, "I know we're not responsible. | don't
recall signing that type of a contract."

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH posed the foll ow ng question:

Wuld that give you some confort, if you were taking
these high risk kids and knowing that they're going to
act outside the bounds of what you nmay or nmay not
consider normal or acceptable behavior, in sone case,
where the state, or the agency ... through which you
obtained the child would indemify and defend you, in
exchange for you taking that?

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified that his question applied to M.
Hor odyski as either a foster parent or an adoptive parent.

M5. HORODYSKI answered, "As an adoptive parent, vyes." She
clarified that it is already the case that a foster parent is
not responsible. She added, "Wen you're talking about really

high risk kids, a lot of tinmes they've already done a |lot of
damage, and famlies try to help them make changes so that that
doesn't continue."

Nunber 2384

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that he has a conflict of
interest on [HB 18] and asked that he be allowed to abstain from
voting on it.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ obj ect ed.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked Representative Guenberg to "continue to
participate in this discussion.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that he thinks that it is hard to
pl ace sone children. Throw ng up roadblocks or requiring

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 20, 2003



indemmification would nmake it inpossible to place them as [ M.
Hor odyski ] stated.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked Ms. Horodyski, if the state would
indemmi fy her for danage caused by the child, would that give
her confort?

M5. HORODYSKI said yes. In response to a foll owup question by
Chair Weyhrauch, she concurred that, if there was a policy
decision to indemify her for the acts of "these kids,"” it would
"smopoth the way for you to want to enter into these
arrangenents.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG clarified, "I meant the opposite. I
nean, certainly, they'd like to be let off the hook. | don't
know t hat any state would want to be on the hook for (indisc.)."

Nunber 2261

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, "Are we going to find that we are
actually stinmulating emancipation of mnors. Because that's
what it sounds |ike, that as soon as they're enmanci pated, you're
out fromunder this hook."

Number 2170

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commended [Ms. Horodyski] and others |Iike
her who take in children with fetal alcohol syndrone and high-
risk children into their hones.

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards (AASB), stated that [AASB] would like to see the cap
renoved. He offered the follow ng anecdote: A juvenil e broke
into a "pop" machine and, to renove the evidence, he set the
school on fire. That [took place at] Muntain Village [ School]

and the danage totaled $7 mllion. M. Rose told the conmttee
that, at the tine, he was enployed as a president of an
i nsurance conpany that was insuring schools. He said, "That

entire | oss was picked up with a $10,000 deductible."

MVR. ROSE stated t hat t he school districts are t he
indemmi fication; they take insurance, pay the deductible, and
assune the cost. He said that there is no renmuneration - that
noney cones from instructional dollars. In the worst-case
scenario, he said, the nunbers could be alarm ng. He nentioned
a resolution adopted by AASB, which he said he would nake
avai l abl e to Representative Myer

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 20, 2003



MR. ROSE nentioned policy inplications. He said, "Wwen we start
to look at the wunintended consequence of sinply renoving the
cap, that becones a problem™ He prevailed upon the commttee
and the legislature to "take a |ook at what we're dealing with
here,"” for exanple, vandalism that can be denoralizing and puts
the tax payers at risk of picking up the bill. In the
previously nentioned case of the Muntain Village School, a $7
mllion loss affected all the nenbers of the [insurance] pool
by increasing their rates for insurance dramatically.

MR ROSE concl uded as foll ows:

To be able to take advantage of the uni queness of the

ci rcunst ance and to not Create uni nt ended
consequences, that's an area of policy that you folks
will have to deal wth. Qur interest is sinply to

remove the $10,000 cap, because we think it's
i nadequate. W'd like to recover the actual cost, and
sonmewhere in between there there's a solution

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH told M. Rose that it would be very useful to
receive the resolution and any other supporting information from
hi s agency.

Nunmber 1955

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ told M. Rose that he raised an
interesting point. The proposed legislation is an effort to
solve a school district problem through one approach. He noted
that M. Rose had raised the issue of insurance and insurance
pool i ng. He asked if there is another way of, perhaps,
conbining different approaches to solve the problem He asked
if sonmething could be done with insurance pooling.

MR. ROSE replied that that mght be a possibility; however, he
noted that there are only two active insurance pools in the
state: the Al aska Municipal League Joint |nsurance Association
(AML/JIA), and the Alaska Public Entity Insurance Conpany

(APEI) . He nentioned the commercial market. He said that "we"
are getting into a highly conpetitive area and there wll be
sonme "proprietary interest.”" He questioned if that's where [the
| egi slature] wants to go in regard to legislation, but said he
thinks it's an issue that needs to be addressed. He stated
that, in the extreme cases, there are costs involved "that are

assuned, not only by tax payers, but by the actual consuners of
i nsurance across the state.™

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 20, 2003



MR. ROSE said, "Vandalism can becone a very expensive thing. |If

you're just talking about graffiti, it's still expensive. But
if you're tal king about major |losses that result fromthis, that
takes us into a whole '"nother arena.” He reiterated that [ AASB]

would like to see the cap lifted, but does not want to see any
uni nt ended consequences.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that conflict exists, on the one
hand, regarding the previously stated exanples of "commerci al
interest with insurance.” Furthernore, he stated, there are
constitutional questions "on the other side,” in regard to
requiring accountability for the actions of a third party for
unspeci fi ed conduct. He suggested that perhaps there mght be
an option to explore, a mddle ground, third option.

Nunmber 1830

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the $7 million in damages at
the Muntain Village School. He asked if that noney
realistically could have been recovered from the parents of the
child responsi bl e.

MR. ROSE answered that his recollection is that that child was
taken away by juvenile services. He stated that he does not
think there was any attenpt to get any renuneration, because the
| o0ss was so extrene. He said he thinks the case has been raised
that when people don't have the nobney, there is no recourse
other than to put themin debt for the rest of their lives. He
stated that AASB's issue is that, when there is damge done to
schools, it wants to be able to cover sonme of those costs when
avai l able. He nentioned "no-fault" insurance and car insurance.
He posed, "Wen people who are not insured get in an accident,
what recourse do you have if they have not hi ng?"

Nunmber 1753

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that people can purchase
"uni nsured” or "underinsured” notorist coverage. He asked if
school districts are insured "for this type of |oss."

MR ROSE answered vyes; it is required by law that school
districts carry insurance. The limts of coverage and the
actual premuns that are paid are contingent on deductibles.
Some school districts choose to take a large deductible to keep
rates down, while others take a smaller deductible. He said,
"You need a case, nmmybe even the deductible could be -- that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 20, 2003



m ght be what you go after.” He clarified that all school
districts carry both property and liability insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that parents hold policies if
they can afford to. He indicated insurance rates "going up."
He said that the question is, "Wose pool do you want to have
goi ng up?" The only other issue, he stated, is the anount of
the deductible. He noted that, based upon the previously stated
testinony of M. Rose, there was no attenpt to "go after” the
$10, 000 [deducti bl e].

MR. ROSE responded that it appeared in that case that there was
no noney to be recovered.

Nunber 1635

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ focused on the "school district
conponent," because he said that it is "the anecdote that's
driving this legislation, which is always problematic.” He

asked how many tines the cap has been a barrier to recovery.
Specifically, he asked how nmany tines damages have fallen bel ow
or above $10, 000. He wondered if it would be possible just to
raise the limt sonewhat, instead of having no cap at all.

MR. ROSE said that he did not have that information, but could
try to get it.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said that "we'll"™ work with the sponsor, as
well, to address sone of these questions.

[HB 18 was heard and hel d.]

HB 46- PRI MARY ELECTI ON BALLOTS

Nunber 1551

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the |ast order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 46, "An Act relating to ballots.”

Nunber 1520

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 46, explained that in the [Twenty-Second] Legislative session
some changes were nade to the state's structure of conducting
primary elections, which I[imted the voting ability of people by
requiring them to select a ballot from one of the established
political parties in the state. He said that it was not

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 20, 2003



foreseen that there could be itenms on the ballot that don't
involve wvoting for candidates - ballot ©propositions, for
exanpl e. Representative Hawker told the House State Affairs
Standing Conmittee that his constituents have expressed concern
regarding being forced to choose a political party ballot when
doing sonething as sinple as choosing to vote only on the
i ssues, for exanple. He stated that he felt the situation
needed to be renmedied as a natter of equity. He nentioned a
commttee substitute that had been offered to the commttee.

Number 1425

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 46 [Version 23-LS0298\D, Kurtz, 2/11/03].
There being no objection, Version D was before the conmttee.

Number 1398

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER stated that the purpose of [Version D] is
to clarify the intent of the |[|egislation. Specifically, the
[ proposed legislation] requires the D vision of Elections,
during the preparation of ballots for primary elections, to
prepare a separate ballot that only contains the propositions
and issues to be voted on. He clarified that that would not
change the already existing ballots <containing the party
candi dates and i ssues. Persons choosing to vote in the primary
el ection may choose only one ballot, which would include the
nonparty issues ballot [if this |egislation is passed], he said.
Representative Hawker stated his belief that this [proposed
| egislation] levels the playing field and encourages the right
and responsibility of all people to vote in the State of Al aska.

Number 1292

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks the bill is a good one.
He stated his belief that with the current scrutiny of the
[state's] budget, it is very inportant for the fiscal notes to

be accurate. He told the sponsor that he thinks that it is
i nconcei vabl e that [the proposed |egislation] could have a zero
fiscal note, because [the D vision of Elections] wll have to

print an extra ballot.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opi ned that the question to be asked is
if there is additional cost to the division, regardless of
whet her the division can absorb it.

Number 1116

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 20, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER responded that he followed the |anguage
provided by the Division of Elections during the preparation of
the fiscal note. He stated his wunderstanding, regarding the
process of preparing ballots for election, that the division
would not incur any increnental cost in excess of what it
currently spends in preparation for elections.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the House State Affairs
Standing Commttee is the commttee of first referral and the
[ House Finance Committee] is "normally" the conmittee of second
referral. He added, "And the precedent that we set will cone
around to haunt us."

Nunmber 0978

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if "these ballots" are generated on
a contract and asked if [the Dwvision of Elections] could
identify what the differential would be in the bid with multiple
bal | ot s.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER replied that he did not know the answer.
He said he believes soneone from the Division of Elections was
avai l abl e to address that |ine of questioning.

Nunmber 0860

LAURA GLAISER, Director, Division of Elections, Ofice of the
Li eutenant Governor, answered Representative Guenberg's query
as foll ows:

That appropriation was for a six-ballot primary, and
this year we've sent out notifications to the
Republ i can Mbderates and to the Geen Party that they
are below the 3 percent, so that the I|ikelihood of a
six-ballot primary next tinme is unlikely. So we
thought it was justified to say that we can absorb
t hose costs, because we've been given an appropriation
that allows for six ballots, which really would be a
seventh ballot, which is the way it was referred to
previ ously.

Number 0795
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to Sonneman v. State, a case

regarding the constitutionality of the rolling ballot, where
"the order of the people would vary, so the person at the top of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 20, 2003



the ballot would not continue to occupy that advantage.” He

reported that the cost to do one extra ballot statewide - in
order to roll it - would have been $50, 000. He continued as
fol |l ows:

That testinony inpelled the [Al aska] Suprene Court to

uphold the constitutionality of no rolling ballot. It
was absolutely outconme-determ native. And a snal
fiscal not e i ke this can have t renmendous,

unanti ci pated consequences.
Nunmber 0688

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referring to the previous testinony of
Ms. G aiser, stated the foll ow ng:

And here, what you're saying M. daiser is that
because a couple of mnor parties are no |onger on the
ballot, there will be a cost savings. So, in fact,
there would be a lapse, or additional nobney com ng
back to the state from this one little item because
you're not going to have to have as nany ballots

printed. If this bill passes, you'll still be able to
absorb it, but the noney comng back to the general
fund will be |ess. So there really is a cost, it's
just that the savings wll be |ess. And for ... all
of these reasons | think that it's really inportant

that we have accurate fiscal notes.

Nunber 0655

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ stated that he wants to echo what
Representative G uenberg said. In this case, the anount of
noney is small, but there could be other instances involving
substanti al anmpunts of noney. He noted that he believes there
was an overestimation of $12 nmillion this year for pupi

all ocation, for exanple. He said that that noney ought to cone
back to the general fund, [the |egislature] ought to know about
it, and, if it is to be reappropriated, it ought to be listed on
the fiscal notes. He said, "It's absolutely inperative for
truth and honesty in budgeting that these nunbers be available.”

Nunber 0581
SEAN HALLORAN testified that he is not [affiliated] with any

group, including political parties, which is why he is
testifying and also why he is suing the Division of Elections

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- February 20, 2003



over the "current schene that's in place right now" He stated
his belief that the current "schene,” which requires voters to
choose a political party in order to be allowed to vote on an
initiative, referendum or any other ballot neasure on a prinmary
el ection day, is unconstitutional. He opined that [the proposed
| egislation] is one of many "fixes" that could be inplenented.
All the "fixes" have one thing in common, he said, which is to
nmake a state ballot, as opposed to a political party ballot,
avail able to voters.

MR.  HALLORAN explained that political parties are private
organi zations that have a right to exclude "under the |aw' any
voters who are not nenbers of that party. Currently, if each of
the political parties closed its primary [election ballot], then
no one who wasn't a nenber of a political party would be able to

vot e. He suggested that if [the legislature] is worried about
the cost of another ballot, for example, it could "just have
initiatives decided at the general election, instead of on

primary election day, when [there is] a statewide ballot wth
state issues and state races being conducted."”

MR. HALLORAN said that the "fix" will have to be done sooner or
| ater, either voluntarily [through legislation], or when the
court declares the current system unconstitutional. He told the
commttee that, "on the last election day - |ast summer,"” he got
a restraining order from the court which allowed him to vote
Wi t hout expressing a preference for a political party. He said
he received hundreds of phone calls within a couple of weeks
after that election, from people congratulating him [for his
action] and saying that they w shed they had "done sonething
simlar thensel ves."

Number 0270

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted his own following two "fixes" to
the problem First, the elimnation of primaries altogether,
whi ch would anmount to a considerable savings to the state; and
second, the elimnation of state recognition for political

party. He reiterated M. Halloran's previous statenent that
political parties are private organizations, and he said that
state subsidization of them is "somewhat questionable” in his

m nd, as well.
Number 0209

MR. HALLORAN stated his opinion that both of [Representative
Berkowitz's] alternatives would be perfectly acceptable.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 20, 2003



Number 0177

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ responded as foll ows: "I't always
strikes me as peculiar that the state keeps track of which
political party people have joined. | think it's a fairly
intrusive thing. They don't keep track of people's religion,

they don't keep track of people's gender, and it seens to ne
political affiliation is a first anendnent association right."

MR. HALLORAN said he agrees with Representative Berkowtz.
Nunmber 0072
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN sai d he supports the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to report the proposed committee
substitute for HB 46, Version 23-LS0298\D, Kurtz, 2/11/03, out
of comittee W th i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. [ No objection was stated and CSHB
46(STA) was noved from the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee.]

TAPE 03-12, SIDE A
Number 0014

[ The following testinony regarding HB 46 was allowed by Chair
Weyhrauch after bill action was taken.]

JENNI FER RUDI NGER, Executive Director, Alaska G vil Liberties
Uni on, spoke on behalf of that organization in support of the
commttee substitute for HB 46. She told the House State
Affairs Standing Comrmittee that ACLU is a nonpartisan, nonprofit
organi zation, with over a thousand nenbers in the state. Its
mssion is to defend the Bill of R ghts and the guarantees of
individual liberties that are found in the Al aska constitution.
Ms. Rudinger said people contacted the ACLU in late July and
early August [2002] regarding the issue previously discussed by
M. Halloran. She said, "W looked into their conplaints. W

concluded they had a great case. Due to tinme constraints, we
assured them that we would work for a legislative fix, and we
t hought this would be a no-brainer."” She stated that "their

first anmendnent rights to association and speech, and also their
Al aska constitutional right to privacy was being infringed by
the current system™

[ CSHB 46( STA) was reported fromcommttee.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- February 20, 2003



ADJ OQURNIVENT
Number 0160

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 9:42
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- February 20, 2003



